WEST PUBLISHING COMPANY

# SELECTED CORPORATION AND PARTNERSHIP STATUTES, RULES AND FORMS

**1993 EDITION** 

SEE BACK COVER FOR MARGIN INDEX

# SELECTED CORPORATION AND PARTNERSHIP STATUTES, RULES, AND FORMS

# 1993 EDITION

**Edited By** 

### Lewis D. Solomon

Professor of Law George Washington University

## Jeffrey D. Bauman

Professor of Law Georgetown University

### Elliott J. Weiss

Professor of Law University of Arizona



### PREFACE

This selection of corporation and partnership statutes, rules, and forms is intended to supplement casebooks and other teaching materials for courses in business organizations (including advanced courses on mergers, acquisition and reorganizations) and contains only the text of the act or statute that normally would be used in a business associations course.

Frequent revisions are planned not only to maintain the materials on a current basis but to serve better the needs of teachers and students in the subject matter areas. Suggestions of users and prospective users are requested. All will be carefully considered.

Suggestions received from casebook authors and teachers have been greatly appreciated. We have attempted to include as many as possible. The size of this supplement is evidence of our inclusion of these ideas.

We would like to thank Sue Ellen Shuerman, University of Arizona '93, and Marianne Sousong, University of Arizona '93, and the staffs of the Georgetown University Law Center and George Washington University National Law Center libraries for their considerable assistance in preparing the materials for this volume.

Further, we would like to acknowledge The American Bar Foundation and Law and Business, Inc. for their permission to use selected Official Comments to The Revised Model Business Corporation Act. Acknowledgment is also made to the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State Laws for permission to reproduce the official Text and Comments for the Uniform Partnership Act, the Revised Uniform Partnership Act, the Uniform Limited Partnership Act and the Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act.

Lewis D. Solomon Jeffrey D. Bauman Elliott J. Weiss

June, 1993

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pre	FACE		Page III
т.	~~	DPOD AMIONG	
I.	_	RPORATIONS	
	A.	Revised Model Business Corporation Act	
	В. С.	Model Statutory Close Corporation Supplement	
	D.	California General Corporation Law	
	E.	Delaware General Corporation Law	
	E. E.	Delaware Code Annotated	
		Indiana Business Corporation Law	
	G. H.	Maryland General Corporation Law	
		Maryland Close Corporations Law	
	Į.	New York Business Corporation Law	
	J.	Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law	
	K.	Wyoming Management Stability Act	
	L.	Model [State] Control Share Statute	
	M.	Corporation Forms	
		1. Articles of Incorporation	
		2. Certificate of Incorporation	
		3. By-Laws	498
		3a. Proposed Model By-Laws to Be Used With the Re-	
		vised Model Business Corporation Act (1984)	
		4. Share Certificate	564
		5. Minutes (Agenda) of Organization Meeting of Directors	565
		6. Waiver of Notice	571
		7. Application for Certificate of Authority	
		8. Certificate of Authority	574
		9. Proxy	
		10. Proxy Statement	
	N.	Miscellaneous	
		1. United States Code: Title 28—Judiciary & Judicial	
		Procedure 2. Federal Rules of Civil Procedure	594 596
			000
II.		INERSHIPS	
	Α.	Uniform Partnership Act	601
	В.	Revised Uniform Partnership Act (1992)	624
	C.	Uniform Limited Partnership Act, 1916	657
	D.	Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act (1976) With the 1985 Amendments	
	E.	Partnership Form	710
			112

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page
III.	LIN	IITED LIABILITY COMPANIES	719
		Delaware Limited Liability Company Act	719
IV.	FEI	DERAL SECURITIES LAW	745
	A.	Securities Act of 1933	745
	B.	Securities Exchange Act of 1934	766
	C.	Rules Under Securities Act of 1933	809
		Regulation A—Conditional Small Issues Exemption	830
		Regulation C—Registration	837
		Regulation D—Limited Offerings	844
	D.	Rules Under Securities Exchange Act of 1934	
	$\mathbf{E}$ .	Forms Under Securities Act of 1933	
	F.	Forms and Schedules Under Securities Exchange Act of	
		1934	
	G.	Regulation S-K	987

### I. CORPORATIONS

# A. REVISED MODEL BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT

(with selected Official Comments)

Comments copyright © American Bar Foundation and Law and Business, Inc. reproduced with permission.

### Contents

### CHAPTER 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

SUE	SCHAPTER A. SHORT TITLE AND RESERVATION OF POWER
Sec.	Page
1.01	Short Title
1.02	Reservation of Power to Amend or Repeal
	SUBCHAPTER B. FILING DOCUMENTS
1.20	Filing Requirements
1.21	Forms8
1.22	Filing, Service and Copying Fees
1.23	Effective Time and Date of Document9
1.24	Correcting Filed Document10
1.25	Filing Duty of Secretary of State
1.26	Appeal From Secretary of State's Refusal to File Document
1.27	Evidentiary Effect of Copy of Filed Document
1.28	Certificate of Existence11
1.29	Penalty for Signing False Document
	SUBCHAPTER C. SECRETARY OF STATE
1.30	Powers
	SUBCHAPTER D. DEFINITIONS
1.40	Act Definitions
1.41	Notice
1.42	Number of Shareholders
	CHAPTER 2. INCORPORATION
2.01	Incorporators
2.02	Articles of Incorporation
2.03	Incorporation
2.04	Liability for Preincorporation Transactions
2.05	Organization of Corporation
2.06	Bylaws
2.07	Emergency Bylaws19

### **CORPORATION LAW**

Sec.	Page
	CHAPTER 3. PURPOSES AND POWERS
3.01 3.02 3.03 3.04	General Powers. 20 Emergency Powers. 21
	CHAPTER 4. NAME
4.01 4.02 4.03	20
	CHAPTER 5. OFFICE AND AGENT
5.01 5.02 5.03 5.04	Registered Office and Registered Agent.24Change of Registered Office or Registered Agent.25Resignation of Registered Agent.25Service on Corporation.25
	CHAPTER 6. SHARES AND DISTRIBUTIONS
	SUBCHAPTER A. SHARES
6.01 6.02 6.03 6.04	Authorized Shares
	SUBCHAPTER B. ISSUANCE OF SHARES
	Subscription for Shares Before Incorporation. 28 Issuance of Shares. 29 Liability of Shareholders. 32 Share Dividends. 33 Share Options. 33 Form and Content of Certificates. 33 Shares Without Certificates. 34 Restriction on Transfer or Registration of Shares and Other Securities. 34 Expense of Issue. 35  UBCHAPTER C. SUBSEQUENT ACQUISITION OF SHARES BY SHAREHOLDERS AND CORPORATION  Shareholders' Preemptive Rights. 35 Corporation's Acquisition of Its Own Shares. 36
	SUBCHAPTER D. DISTRIBUTIONS
6.40	Distributions to Shareholders

### MODEL BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT

Sec.	Page CHAPTER 7, SHAREHOLDERS
	SUBCHAPTER A. MEETINGS
7.01	Annual Meeting
7.02	Special Meeting
7.03	Court-Ordered Meeting
7.04	Action Without Meeting
7.05 7.06	Notice of Meeting
	Waiver of Notice
7.07	Record Date
	SUBCHAPTER B. VOTING
7.20	Shareholders' List for Meeting48
7.21	Voting Entitlement of Shares49
7.22	Proxies
7.23	Shares Held by Nominees
7.24	Corporation's Acceptance of Votes
7.25	Quorum and Voting Requirements for Voting Groups
7.26 7.27	Action by Single and Multiple Voting Groups
7.27	Greater Quorum or Voting Requirements
1.20	Voting for Directors; Cumulative Voting53
	SUBCHAPTER C. VOTING TRUSTS AND AGREEMENTS
7.30	Voting Trusts53
7.31	Voting Agreements
7.32	Shareholder Agreements54
	SUBCHAPTER D. DERIVATIVE PROCEEDINGS
7.40	Subchapter Definitions63
7.41	Standing
7.42	Demand65
7.43	Stay of Proceedings67
7.44	Dismissal
7.45	Discontinuance or Settlement
7.46 7.47	Payment of Expenses
1.41	Applicability to Foreign Corporations
	CHAPTER 8. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
	SUBCHAPTER A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
8.01	Requirements for and Duties of Board of Directors
8.02	Qualifications of Directors77
8.03	Number and Election of Directors
8.04	Election of Directors by Certain Classes of Shareholders
8.05	Terms of Directors Generally
8.06	Staggered Terms for Directors
8.07	Resignation of Directors
8.08 8.09	Removal of Directors by Shareholders
0.03	Removal of Directors by Judicial Proceeding

### CORPORATION LAW

Sec.	Pa	age
8.10	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	79
8.11		80
\$	SUBCHAPTER B. MEETINGS AND ACTION OF THE BOARD	
8.20		
8.21	Action Without Meeting	80
8.22	Notice of Meeting	81
8.23	Waiver of Notice	81
8.24	Quorum and Voting	81
8.25	Committees	82
	SUBCHAPTER C. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT	
8.30	General Standards for Directors	85
8.31	Director Conflict of Interest	
8.32	Loans to Directors	
8.33	Liability for Unlawful Distributions	94
	SUBCHAPTER D. OFFICERS	
8.40	Required Officers	95
8.41	Duties of Officers.	
8.42	Standards of Conduct for Officers.	95
8.43	Resignation and Removal of Officers.	
8.44	Contract Rights of Officers.	
	SUBCHAPTER E. INDEMNIFICATION	
8.50	Subchapter Definitions.	96
8.51	Authority to Indemnify.	
8.52	Mandatory Indemnification	
8.53	Advance for Expenses	
8.54	Court-Ordered Indemnification	01
8.55	Determination and Authorization of Indemnification1	02
8.56	Indemnification of Officers, Employees, and Agents	03
8.57	Insurance	
8.58	Application of Subchapter1	
	SUBCHAPTER F. DIRECTORS' CONFLICTING INTEREST TRANSACTIONS	
8.60	Subchapter Definitions1	ഹ
8.61	Judicial Action	
8.62	Directors' Action	TO
	Shareholders' Action 1	22 25
	CHAPTER 9. [RESERVED]	
	CHAPTER 10. AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES	
	OF INCORPORATION AND BYLAWS	
	SUBCHAPTER A. AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION	
10.01	Authority to Amend	29

### MODEL BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT

Sec.	Pa	age
10.02	Amendment by Board of Directors	29
10.03		
10.04		
10.05	Amendment Before Issuance of Shares	
10.06	Articles of Amendment1	31
10.07		
10.08		
10.09	Effect of Amendment	.33
	SUBCHAPTER B. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS	
10.20	Amendment by Board of Directors or Shareholders	33
10.21	Bylaw Increasing Quorum or Voting Requirement for Sharehold-	
10.22	ers	34 34
	CHAPTER 11. MERGER AND SHARE EXCHANGE	
11.01	Merger1	35
11.02	Share Exchange	
11.03	Action on Plan	
11.04	Merger of Subsidiary	37
11.05	Articles of Merger or Share Exchange	38
11.06	Effect of Merger or Share Exchange.	38
11.07	Merger or Share Exchange With Foreign Corporation13	39
	CHAPTER 12. SALE OF ASSETS	
12.01	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of	40
		40 41
	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets.	40 41
	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	40 41
	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	41
12.02 13.01 13.02	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	<b>4</b> 1
12.02 13.01	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	41 42 43
12.02 13.01 13.02	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	41 42 43
12.02 13.01 13.02 13.03	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	42 43 44
12.02 13.01 13.02 13.03	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	42 43 44
12.02 13.01 13.02	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	42 43 44 45 45 45
12.02 13.01 13.02 13.03 13.20 13.21 13.22 13.23	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	42 43 44 45 45 46
12.02 13.01 13.02 13.03 13.20 13.21 13.22 13.23 13.24	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	42 43 44 45 45 46 46
12.02 13.01 13.02 13.03 13.20 13.21 13.22 13.23 13.24 13.25	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets.  Sale of Assets Other Than in Regular Course of Business.  CHAPTER 13. DISSENTERS' RIGHTS  SUBCHAPTER A. RIGHT TO DISSENT AND OBTAIN PAYMENT FOR SHARES  Definitions.  Right to Dissent.  Dissent by Nominees and Beneficial Owners.  SUBCHAPTER B. PROCEDURE FOR EXERCISE OF DISSENTERS' RIGHTS  Notice of Dissenters' Rights.  Notice of Intent to Demand Payment.  14 Dissenters' Notice.  14 Duty to Demand Payment.  15 Share Restrictions.  16 Payment.	41 42 43 44 45 45 46 46
12.02 13.01 13.02 13.03 13.20 13.21 13.22 13.23 13.24 13.25 13.26	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets	41 42 43 44 45 45 46 46 47
12.02 13.01 13.02 13.03 13.20 13.21 13.22 13.23 13.24 13.25	Sale of Assets in Regular Course of Business and Mortgage of Assets.  Sale of Assets Other Than in Regular Course of Business.  CHAPTER 13. DISSENTERS' RIGHTS  SUBCHAPTER A. RIGHT TO DISSENT AND OBTAIN PAYMENT FOR SHARES  Definitions.  Right to Dissent.  Dissent by Nominees and Beneficial Owners.  SUBCHAPTER B. PROCEDURE FOR EXERCISE OF DISSENTERS' RIGHTS  Notice of Dissenters' Rights.  Notice of Intent to Demand Payment.  14 Dissenters' Notice.  14 Duty to Demand Payment.  15 Share Restrictions.  16 Payment.	41 42 43 44 45 45 46 46 47 47

### CORPORATION LAW

Sec.	SUBCHAPTER C. JUDICIAL APPRAISAL OF SHARES	Page
13.30		
13.31	Court Costs and Counsel Fees.	149
	CHAPTER 14. DISSOLUTION	
	SUBCHAPTER A. VOLUNTARY DISSOLUTION	
14.01 14.02 14.03	Dissolution by Board of Directors and Shareholders	150 150
14.04 14.05 14.06	Effect of Dissolution.  Known Claims Against Dissolved Corporation.	151 152
14.07	Unknown Claims Against Dissolved Corporation	153
	SUBCHAPTER B. ADMINISTRATIVE DISSOLUTION	
14.20 14.21 14.22 14.23	Grounds for Administrative Dissolution.  Procedure for and Effect of Administrative Dissolution.  Reinstatement Following Administrative Dissolution.  Appeal From Denial of Reinstatement.	154 154
	SUBCHAPTER C. JUDICIAL DISSOLUTION	
14.30 14.31 14.32 14.33 14.34	Grounds for Judicial Dissolution.  Procedure for Judicial Dissolution.  Receivership or Custodianship.  Decree of Dissolution.  Election to Purchase in Lieu of Dissolution.	156 157 157
	SUBCHAPTER D. MISCELLANEOUS	
14.40	Deposit With State Treasurer	160
	[CHAPTER 15, FOREIGN CORPORATIONS—OMITTED]	
	CHAPTER 16. RECORDS AND REPORTS	
	SUBCHAPTER A. RECORDS	
16.01 16.02 16.03 16.04	Corporate Records.  Inspection of Records by Shareholders.  Scope of Inspection Right.  Court-Ordered Inspection.	l61 l62
	SUBCHAPTER B. REPORTS	
16.20 16.21 16.22	Financial Statements for Shareholders. 1 Other Reports to Shareholders. 1 Annual Report for Secretary of State. 1	63
	CHAPTER 17. TRANSITION PROVISIONS	
17.01	Application to Existing Domestic Corporations	.65

Sec.		Page
17.02	Application to Qualified Foreign Corporations	165
17.03	Saving Provisions.	165
	Severability.	
	Repeal	
	Effective Date.	

MODEL BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT

§ 1.20

### CHAPTER 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

# SUBCHAPTER A. SHORT TITLE AND RESERVATION OF POWER

### § 1.01 Short Title

This Act shall be known and may be cited as the "[name of state] Business Corporation Act."

### § 1.02 Reservation of Power to Amend or Repeal

The [name of state legislature] has power to amend or repeal all or part of this Act at any time and all domestic and foreign corporations subject to this Act are governed by the amendment or repeal.

### SUBCHAPTER B. FILING DOCUMENTS

### § 1.20 Filing Requirements

- (a) A document must satisfy the requirements of this section, and of any other section that adds to or varies these requirements, to be entitled to filing by the secretary of state.
- (b) This Act must require or permit filing the document in the office of the secretary of state.
- (c) The document must contain the information required by this Act. It may contain other information as well.
  - (d) The document must be typewritten or printed.
- (e) The document must be in the English language. A corporate name need not be in English if written in English letters or Arabic or Roman numerals, and the certificate of existence required of foreign corporations need not be in English if accompanied by a reasonably authenticated English translation.

### (f) The document must be executed:

- (1) by the chairman of the board of directors of a domestic or foreign corporation, by its president, or by another of its officers;
- (2) if directors have not been selected or the corporation has not been formed, by an incorporator; or

- (3) if the corporation is in the hands of a receiver, trustee, or other court-appointed fiduciary, by that fiduciary.
- (g) The person executing the document shall sign it and state beneath or opposite his signature his name and the capacity in which he signs. The document may but need not contain: (1) the corporate seal, (2) an attestation by the secretary or an assistant secretary, (3) an acknowledgement, verification, or proof.
- (h) If the secretary of state has prescribed a mandatory form for the document under section 1.21, the document must be in or on the prescribed form.
- (i) The document must be delivered to the office of the secretary of state for filing and must be accompanied by one exact or conformed copy (except as provided in sections 5.03 and 15.09), the correct filing fee, and any franchise tax, license fee, or penalty required by this Act or other law.

### § 1.21 Forms

- (a) The secretary of state may prescribe and furnish on request forms for: (1) an application for a certificate of existence, (2) a foreign corporation's application for a certificate of authority to transact business in this state, (3) a foreign corporation's application for a certificate of withdrawal, and (4) the annual report. If the secretary of state so requires, use of these forms is mandatory.
- (b) The secretary of state may prescribe and furnish on request forms for other documents required or permitted to be filed by this Act but their use is not mandatory.

### § 1.22 Filing, Service and Copying Fees

(a) The secretary of state shall collect the following fees when the documents described in this subsection are delivered to him for filing:

Document	Fee
(1) Articles of incorporation	\$
(2) Application for use of indistinguishable name	\$
(3) Application for reserved name	\$
(4) Notice of transfer of reserved name	\$
(5) Application for registered name	\$
(6) Application for renewal of registered name	\$
(7) Corporation's statement of change of registered	<del>+</del> ———·
agent or registered office or both	<b>s</b>
(8) Agent's statement of change of registered of-	<b></b>
fice for each affected corporation	\$
not to exceed a total of	\$
(9) Agent's statement of resignation	No fee.
(10) Amendment of articles of incorporation	\$

Document	Fee
(11) Restatement of articles of incorporation	<b>\$</b> .
with amendment of articles	\$
(12) Articles of merger or share exchange	\$
(13) Articles of dissolution	\$
(14) Articles of revocation of dissolution	\$
(15) Certificate of administrative dissolution	No fee.
(16) Application for reinstatement following admin-	
istrative dissolution	\$
(17) Certificate of reinstatement	No fee.
(18) Certificate of judicial dissolution	No fee.
(19) Application for certificate of authority	<b>\$</b> .
(20) Application for amended certificate of authori-	
ty	\$
(21) Application for certificate of withdrawal	\$
(22) Certificate of revocation of authority to trans-	
act business	No fee.
(23) Annual report	\$
(24) Articles of correction	\$
(25) Application for certificate of existence or au-	
thorization	\$
(26) Any other document required or permitted to	
be filed by this Act.	\$

- (b) The secretary of state shall collect a fee of \$\_\_\_\_\_ each time process is served on him under this Act. The party to a proceeding causing service of process is entitled to recover this fee as costs if he prevails in the proceeding.
- (c) The secretary of state shall collect the following fees for copying and certifying the copy of any filed document relating to a domestic or foreign corporation:
  - (1) \$\_\_\_\_ a page for copying; and
  - (2) \$\_\_\_\_ for the certificate.

### § 1.23 Effective Time and Date of Document

- (a) Except as provided in subsection (b) and section 1.24(c), a document accepted for filing is effective:
  - (1) at the time of filing on the date it is filed, as evidenced by the secretary of state's date and time endorsement on the original document; or
  - (2) at the time specified in the document as its effective time on the date it is filed.
- (b) A document may specify a delayed effective time and date, and if it does so the document becomes effective at the time and date specified. If a delayed effective date but no time is specified, the document

is effective at the close of business on that date. A delayed effective date for a document may not be later than the 90th day after the date it is filed.

### § 1.24 Correcting Filed Document

(a) A domestic or foreign corporation may correct a document filed by the secretary of state if the document (1) contains an incorrect statement or (2) was defectively executed, attested, sealed, verified, or acknowledged.

### (b) A document is corrected:

- (1) by preparing articles of correction that (i) describe the document (including its filing date) or attach a copy of it to the articles, (ii) specify the incorrect statement and the reason it is incorrect or the manner in which the execution was defective, and (iii) correct the incorrect statement or defective execution; and
  - (2) by delivering the articles to the secretary of state for filing.
- (c) Articles of correction are effective on the effective date of the document they correct except as to persons relying on the uncorrected document and adversely affected by the correction. As to those persons, articles of correction are effective when filed.

### § 1.25 Filing Duty of Secretary of State

- (a) If a document delivered to the office of the secretary of state for filing satisfies the requirements of section 1.20, the secretary of state shall file it.
- (b) The secretary of state files a document by stamping or otherwise endorsing "Filed," together with his name and official title and the date and time of receipt, on both the original and the document copy and on the receipt for the filing fee. After filing a document, except as provided in sections 5.03 and 15.10, the secretary of state shall deliver the document copy, with the filing fee receipt (or acknowledgement of receipt if no fee is required) attached, to the domestic or foreign corporation or its representative.
- (c) If the secretary of state refuses to file a document, he shall return it to the domestic or foreign corporation or its representative within five days after the document was delivered, together with a brief, written explanation of the reason for his refusal.
- (d) The secretary of state's duty to file documents under this section is ministerial. His filing or refusing to file a document does not:
  - (1) affect the validity or invalidity of the document in whole or part;
  - (2) relate to the correctness or incorrectness of information contained in the document:

(3) create a presumption that the document is valid or invalid or that information contained in the document is correct or incorrect.

# § 1.26 Appeal From Secretary of State's Refusal to File Document

- (a) If the secretary of state refuses to file a document delivered to his office for filing, the domestic or foreign corporation may appeal the refusal to the [name or describe] court [of the county where the corporations's principal office (or, if none in this state, its registered office) is or will be located] [of \$\_\_\_\_\_ county]. The appeal is commenced by petitioning the court to compel filing the document and by attaching to the petition the document and the secretary of state's explanation of his refusal to file.
- (b) The court may summarily order the secretary of state to file the document or take other action the court considers appropriate.
- (c) The court's final decision may be appealed as in other civil proceedings.

### § 1.27 Evidentiary Effect of Copy of Filed Document

A certificate attached to a copy of the document filed by the secretary of state, bearing his signature (which may be in facsimile) and the seal of this state, is conclusive evidence that the original document is on file with the secretary of state.

### § 1.28 Certificate of Existence

- (a) Anyone may apply to the secretary of state to furnish a certificate of existence for a domestic corporation or a certificate of authorization for a foreign corporation.
  - (b) A certificate of existence or authorization sets forth:
  - (1) the domestic corporation's corporate name or the foreign corporation's corporate name used in this state;
  - (2) that (i) the domestic corporation is duly incorporated under the law of this state, the date of its incorporation, and the period of its duration if less than perpetual; or (ii) that the foreign corporation is authorized to transact business in this state;
  - (3) that all fees, taxes, and penalties owed to this state have been paid, if (i) payment is reflected in the records of the secretary of state and (ii) nonpayment affects the existence or authorization of the domestic or foreign corporation;
  - (4) that its most recent annual report required by section 16.22 has been delivered to the secretary of state;
    - (5) that articles of dissolution have not been filed; and

### § 1.28

### CORPORATION LAW

- (6) other facts of record in the office of the secretary of state that may be requested by the applicant.
- (c) Subject to any qualification stated in the certificate, a certificate of existence or authorization issued by the secretary of state may be relied upon as conclusive evidence that the domestic or foreign corporation is in existence or is authorized to transact business in this state.

### § 1.29 Penalty for Signing False Document

- (a) A person commits an offense if he signs a document he knows is false in any material respect with intent that the document be delivered to the secretary of state for filing.
- (b) An offense under this section is a [\_\_\_\_] misdemeanor [punishable by a fine of not to exceed \$\_\_\_\_].

### SUBCHAPTER C. SECRETARY OF STATE

### § 1.30 Powers

The secretary of state has the power reasonably necessary to perform the duties required of him by this Act.

### SUBCHAPTER D. DEFINITIONS

### § 1.40 Act Definitions

In this Act:

- (1) "Articles of incorporation" include amended and restated articles of incorporation and articles of merger.
- (2) "Authorized shares" means the shares of all classes a domestic or foreign corporation is authorized to issue.
- (3) "Conspicuous" means so written that a reasonable person against whom the writing is to operate should have noticed it. For example, printing in italics or boldface or contrasting color, or typing in capitals or underlined, is conspicuous.
- (4) "Corporation" or "domestic corporation" means a corporation for profit, which is not a foreign corporation, incorporated under or subject to the provisions of this Act.
  - (5) "Deliver" includes mail.
- (6) "Distribution" means a direct or indirect transfer of money or other property (except its own shares) or incurrence of indebtedness by a corporation to or for the benefit of its shareholders in respect of any of its shares. A distribution may be in the form of a declaration or payment of a dividend; a purchase, redemption, or other acquisition of shares; a distribution of indebtedness; or otherwise.